FACTS 

My then wife, Nancy McCoy Sostaric, and I borrowed $200 ..000 from Sally Marshall in 

2005. A that time we executed an updated promissory note and also gave her a deed of trust for 

property, located at 99 Garden Drive, Berkeley Springs, West Virginia (See Exhibits "1" & 

"2"). 

On September 21,2012 Pill & Pill gave notice ofacceleration by reason ofnon-payment 

ofthe note to Sally and right to cure. (See Exhibits "3" & "4"). I was unaware ofmany unpaid 

items. 

Shortly thereafter, the property was sold at foreclosure. The winning bidder was Sally. It 

seems that she was able to buy it as part ofa Sheriffs sale. (See Exhibit "5" 

Subsequently, and not known by me, Sally sued Nancy and I. (See Complaint). 

There was originally a default submitted but the trial court judge.. Michael D. Lorensen, 

had a hearing on November 8, 2013 and noted that it would consider her request as a motion for 

summary judgment and that Nancy and I were to submit pleadings to contest the motion. Nancy. 

on behalfofboth ofus, submitted an Answer, which she believed satisfied the Judge's directive. 

Sally then filed a Response and included email commmrication between us. The only item that 

the Court should have taken into consideration was Sally's Answer and not the email 

communication. This communication should not have been used as evidence since it was 

intended for settlement purpose only, and anything said in it was not factual and/or binding. 

On January 16, 2014, Judge Lorensen issued his Order granting summary judgment to 

Sally. (See Order Granting Summary Judgment). 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

This Court must conduct a completely new review of the case record 



NANCY AND I ARE PRO SE LITIGANTS 

AND SHOULD HAVE BEEN TREATED AS SUCH 


I understand that a trial court must recognize the right ofa person to act in a pro se 

capacity. However, I also know that the right to be one's own attorney should not be abridged 

because he or she is unfamiliar with legal procedures. Blair v. Maynard, 174 WV 257 (1984). 

As a result the trial court "must insure that no person's cause or defense is defeated by reason of 

their nDfamjJjarity with procedural or evidentiary rules." Bego v. Bego, 177 WV 74 (1986) 

My then wife, Nancy McCoy Sostaric, is not an attorney and has no legal training. When 

I appeared at the hearing on November 8, 2013, thejudge said that we had ''to file a response 

supported by admissible proof of a defense to the claim." (See Order granting Summary 

Judgment). Nancy filed an Answer with the court in both ofour names. She raised issues about 

the foreclosure sale and the fact that Sally had purchased the house and was now suing for the 

money on the note. Nancy tried to the best ofher ability to articulate our position and filed what 

she believed was admissible proof in our defense. Sally filed a Response and set forth in the 

response that there were more issues that Nancy had made misleading or not addressed inher 

Answer. Obviously when two parties claim that there are issues in dispute, a trial is needed. This 

joint stance ofboth parties was ignored by the Judge... 

The judge did state in his decision that courts in West Virginia prefer trials rather than 

summary judgments. (See Order granting Summary Judgment) As a result, he should have held a 

trial in order for Sally and we to explain in greater detail the issues and facts in dispute. The 

judge in the decision notes that Nancy addressed the issues but not in the form of an affidavit or 

other admissible proof of defense in contrast Sally's materials reflect that she had the assistance 

ofany attorney. (See Oder GTanting Summary Judgment). Our case was lost due to our 

unfamiliarity with procedural and evidentiary rules. Nancy's response should have been taken by 

the Court as a joint affidavit, thereby creating an issue in fact 

The Court's approach goes against this court's position that a person's cause is defeated 

by reason ofunfamiliarity with procedural or evidentiary rules. The Judge, inste~ elevated form 

over substance and should have held a trial to allow an airing ofall ofthe factual and legal 

issues. Had he taken into consideration Sally's Response to Nancy's filing, he would have 

plainly seen that there was an issue that needed to be explored further at trial. Both sides 



presented facts but did not do so (especially us) in a fashion that the Court deemed proper. The 

Judge just relied upon Sally's initial papers. This failure obviously showed our joint 

unfamiliarity with proper court procedures and should not be held against us. 

THERE ARE ISSUES OF FACT 

In my research I found that Courts in West Virginia have to look at all ofthe materials in 

a case and determine whether or not there is a genuine issue offact for trial. I believe that there 

are some here, which the court overlooked. 

Sally bought the house at foreclosure, on which she had a deed of trust. (See Exhibit). 

She then sued for the differential but did not present proper evidence as to what is the value of 

the damages she incurred. The Court made a mistake when it relied upon Sally's statements. 

Sally was unjustly enriched. She received both the property back and is now seeking funds, 

without giving a proper credit for the NOTElDeed ofTrust. 

In the case ofRealmarks Development v Ranson, 208 WV 717 rwv 2000), this court was 

faced with an argument about unjust enrichment. There the Court held that ifbenefits have been 

received and retained under circumstances it would be inequitable and unconscionable for the 

party receiving the value to avoid payment - the party receiving the value must pay their 

reasonable value. 

Here Sally bought the house at foreclosure and then sued on the note. She did not give a 

proper credit for the value of the NotelDeed ofTrust. Furthermore, the deed of trust was given as 

collateral for the loan. By foreclosing on the house .. Sally elected her option - to take the house 

and not pursue the note. 1 Her actions of"double dipping" are inequitable and unconscionable. 

She should not be enriched, as she has ownership ofthe house and wants money for the same 

house. 

CONCLUSION 

For these reasons, I ask that this Court set aside the judgment of the court and send it back for a 

1 This Court should also note that the sole reason that Sally wanted a judgment on the note, was to use it for 
jncome tax purposes and not to take the money actually. 



trial.