In the Supreme Court ofAppeals ofWest Virginia 


Docket No. 14-0143 


NANCYAND STJEPAN SOSTARIC, 
Petitioner 

v.) 

SALLY MARSHALL, 
Respondent 

SUMMARY RESPONSE 

Comes now the Respondent, Sally Marshall, pro se, and pursuant to Rule 10 (e) of 

the Revised Rules ofAppellate Procedure and a Scheduling Order from this Honorable 

Court, files the within summary response.

1. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The petitioners [hereafter referred to as the Sostarics] signed a Promissory Note for a 

loan of$200,000.00 with respondent [hereafter referred to as Marshall]. (AR page 1). The 

loan was secured by a Deed of Trust pledging property at 99 Garden Drive, Berkeley 

Springs, WV. (AR4-21). The Sostarics eventually defaulted on the loan. A notice of 

acceleration by reason ofnon-payment and right to cure was served on the Sostarics. (AR 

page 22,23). A Trustee Sale was held on October 17,2012 and Marshall purchased the 

property at 99 Garden Drive at public auction. At the time of the foreclosure sale the 

Sostarics owed the sum of $200,000 on the original loan and additional interest payments of 

$25,911. (AR page 23). It is undisputed that all statutory requirements ofthe State 
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foreclosure laws were followed. It is also undisputed that the Sostarics did not seek to have 

the foreclosure sale set aside. 

On December 13,2012, Marshall filed a complaint seeking to recover $175,407.45 

and any additional costs or interest that the court deemed appropriate. A Hearing was held by 

trial court on November 8,2013 and the court entered an Order ofProceedings on November 

12,2013. Defendants Answer was submitted by the Sostarics to the court on December 2, 

2013 and Marshall submitted Response to Defendants Answer on January 3, 2014. 

The Court entered an Order Granting Summary Judgment to Plaintiff Marshall on 

January 14, 2014. Following the Order, a Notice ofAppeal, scheduling order, petitioners 

brief, and this summary response ensued. 

II. ARGUMENT 

It is difficult to address and give concise arguments in response to Appellant's Brief 

since it fails to address any specific Assignment of Error as required in the Rules ofAppellate 

Procedure. An Administrative Order ofthe court dated 10 December 2012 states: 

Briefs that set forth rambling assignments oferror that are essentially 

statements of facts with a conclusion that the lower tribunal was "clearly wrong" 

rather than "a list ofthe assignments oferror that are presented for review, 

expressed in the terms and circumstances of the case but without unnecessary 

detail" as required by Rule 10(cX3)~ 


Briefs with arguments that do not contain a citation to legal authority to support 
the argument presented and do not "contain appropriate and specific citations to the 
record on appeal, including citations that pinpoint when and how the issues in the 
assignments oferror were presented to the lower tribunal" as required by rule 1 O(c )(7); 

The Court is of the opinion that as ofJanuary 1,2013, all ofthe requirements of 
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the Rules must be strictly observed by litigants. The Rules are not mere procedural 
niceties; they set forth a structured method to permit litigants and this Court to carefully 
review each case. "Judges are not like pigs. hunting for truflles buried in briefs." State 
Dept. ofHealth v. Robert Morris N., 195 W.Va. 759, 765, 466 S.E.2d 827, 833 (1995). In 
addition, litigants before this Court must recognize that "an appellate remedy should not 
be pursued unless counsel believes in good faith that error has been committed and there 
is a reasonable basis for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law." Syl. Pt. 
3, in part, State v. McGill, 2012 WL 5834573 (W.Va Sup. Ct. No. 11-0261, November 
15,2012). 

Accordingly, litigants before this Court are hereby provided notice that aU 
filings after January 1, 2013 must carefully comply with the Rules. Pursuant to Rule 
10(j), failure to file a compliant brief "may result in the Supreme Court refusing to 
consider the case, denying argument to the derelict party, dismissing the case from the 
docket, or imposing such other sanctions as the Court may deem appropriate." 

Despite this failure noted above, we will hunt for the truffles buried in this brief. It 

appears that Appellants are arguing "NANCY AND I ARE PRO SE LITIGANTS AND 

SHOULD HAVE BEEN TREATED AS SUCH". There is no evidence presented that the 

Sostarics were not treated as pro se litigants and it should be noted that all parties appeared 

pro se. In Hammer the court held: 

"This Court has long held that non-lawyer, pro se litigants generally should not be 
held accountable for all ofthe procedural nuances of the law." Hammer, 215 W.Va. at 603, 
600 S.E.2d at 315 (Davis, J., concurring). 

When a litigant chooses to represent himself, it is the duty ofthe trial court to insure 
fairness, allowing reasonable accommodations for the pro se litigant so long as no harm is 
done an adverse party .... Most importantly, the trial court must strive to insure that no 
person's cause or defense is defeated solely by reason of their unfamiliarity with procedural 
or evidentiary rules. State ex reI. Dillon v. Egnor, 188 W.Va. 221,227,423 S.E.2d 624, 630 
(1992) (internal quotations and citations omitted). 

Sostarics requested a hearing on September 3, 2013 in their Opposition to the Motion 

for Default Judgment and a Hearing was held by the court on November 8,2013. Appellant's 

Briefat page 2 acknowledges that the judge gave instructions and attempted to aid both 

parties ofthe need "to file a response supported by admissible proof of a defense to the 

claim". The Sostarics filed an Answer and the court considered it but concluded it "does not 



include any affidavit or admissible proof of a defense." Quoting; Order Granting Summary 

Judgment at page 2. The court also cited Rule 56(t) ID. At 60 and W. VA. R CIV.P.56 that 

"an adverse party may not rest upon mere allegations or denials of the adverse party's 

pleadings ... " Wishing for a different set of facts or outcomes does not mean the Sostarics 

were not treated as pro se litigants. 

The Sostarics Answer "raised issues about the foreclosure sale and the fact that Sally 

had purchased the house and was now suing for the money on the note." [Appellant's Briefat 

page 2]. It is undisputed that the Sostarics did not seek to have the foreclosure sale set aside 

but instead sought an off-set against the loan deficiency in the amount ofwhat they perceived 

or hoped to be the fair market value of the property. This Court has determined that" A 

grantor may not assert, as a defense in a deficiency judgment proceeding, that the fair market 

value of real property was not obtained at a trustee foreclosure sale. " Quoting, Syl. Pt. 4. 

Fayette County National Bank v. Gary C. Lilly, et al. Case No.23360 [January, 1997]. 

Appellant's Brief additional states: 'THERE ARE ISSUES OF FACT' and therefore 

seeks the judgment be set aside and send it back for a trial. Here again the only "issue of 

fact" that is presented is that "Sally bought the house at foreclosure, on which she had a deed 

of trust. She then sued for the differential but did not present proper evidence as to what is 

the value of the damages she incurred. The court made a mistake when it relied upon Sally's 

statements." In the Order Granting Summary Judgment the court clearly addressed this issue 

ofvalue ofdamages incurred and stated: "the Plaintiffhas met her burden and ... set forth 

evidence of the outstanding debt and attorney's fees" while the court denied other expenses 

requested by the Plaintiff as not supported by the evidence oflaw . 
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III. CONCLUSION 

The Circuit Court's order granting default judgment should be upheld, and 

this matter should not be remanded for further proceedings. 

Signe~~ 
ally Marshall